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STATE OF OHIO 88 East Broad Street

P.Q. Box 1140
OFFICE OF THE AUDITOR Columibus, Ohio 43216-1140
TiM PETRO, AUDITOR OF STATE Telephone 614-466-4514
800-2682-0370

Facsimile 614-466-4490

Board of County Commissioners
48 East Main
Mount Gilead, Ohio 43338

We have reviewed the Independent Auditor's Regort of Morrow County, prepared by Ciuni &
Panichi, Inc., for the audit period January 1, 1999 through December 31, 1999. Based upon this
review, we have accegted these reports in lieu of the audit required by Section 117.11, Revised
Code. The Auditor of State did not audit the accompanying financial statements and,
accordingly, we are unable to express, and do not express an opinion on them.

Our review was made in reference to the applicable sections of legislative criteria, as reflected
by the Ohio Constitution, and the Revised Code, policies, procedures and guidelines of the
Auditor of State, regulations and grant requirements. Morrow County is responsible for
compliance with these laws and regulations.

JIM PETRO
uditor of State

July 6, 2000



(1UNI& PANICHI
Creating econontic value through INC.

knowledge, innovation, commitment, and seroice CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

Board of County Commissioners
Morrow County, Chio

‘We have audited the accompanying general-purpose financial statements of Morrow County, Ohio as of and
for the year ended December 31, 1999 as listed in the table of contents. These general-purpose financial
statements are the responsibility of Morrow County, Ohie’s management. Our responsibility is to express an
opinion on these general-purpose financial statements based on our audit. We did not audit the financial
statements of the Morrow County Hospital, which represents 99% of the total assets and total revenue of the
enterprise fund type. Those financial statements were audited by other auditors whose report thereon has
been furnished to us, and our opinion, insofar as it relates to the amounts included for the Morrow County
Hospital, is based on the report of the other auditors.

We conducted our audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards and the standards
applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General
of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes
examining, on a test basts, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An
audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management,
as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audit provides a
reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, based on our audit and the report of other auditors, the general-purpose financial statements
referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of Morrow County, Ohio, as of
December 31, 1999, and the results of its operations and cash flows of its proprietary fund types for the year
then ended in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles.

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued a report dated June 26, 2000 on our

consideration of Morrow County, Ohio’s internal control over financial reporting and our tests of its
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, coniracts, and grants.

Covinee ¥ (riz,” Sree.

Cleveland, Ohio

Jume 26, 2000
25201 Chagrin Boulevard, Cleveland, OH 44122-5683 _ 37 West Broad Street, Columbus, OH 43215-4132
Telephone: 216-831-7171 Telephone: 614-241-2200
Fax: 216-831-3020 TFax: 614-241-2202

am:,,hs.mn
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MORROW COUNTY., OHIO

GENERAL PURPOSE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The general purpose financial statements of Morrow County, Ohio include the basic combined financial
statements, presented by fund type and account group, and notes to the financial statements that are
essential to the fair presentation of financial position and results of operations and cash flows of

proprietary fund types.

i
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- MORROW COUNTY, OHIO
COMBINED STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES N FUND BALANCES
ALL GOVERNMENTAL FUND TYPES AND EXPENDABLE TRUST FUND
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1999

Fiduciary
Goverrmegtal Fund Types Fund Type
Total
Special Dbt Capital Expendabl (M d
General Reverme Service Projects Trust Only}
Revenuce: -
Propertyandothertaxes . . . .. ... ... “$1296528 32,331,682 53,628,210
Salestaxes . ... .. ... i 2333726 27333726
Chargesforservices . . . ... ... ... - 2,162,026 603 3569 2,765,395
Licensesandpermits . . . v v v w vn v uov s 3408 53,758 56,166
Fines and forfeitures. . . . ... ... ... 291241 46,179 337,420
Specialasgessments . . .. ... L ... - 137,197 137,197
Invergovernmenta) . . .. ... ... 796,563 5,841,738 31,004 873 11,643,174
Irvestrnemt IRCOmeE . o . . w e a e s 758,714 28528 _ 203,377 590,819
Other. . ... . i it a e §11,043 45 871 38514 108,897 15,640 321,065
Tomlrevemme . ., ., ... ... 7753349 13.088 322 38,514 1317347 15,640 22213,172
Expenditures:
Crrent:
Geaeral government:
Legislative and executive, . . ... ... 2,283 891 418,732 2,702,623
Judicial . . ... ...... 0000 635,508 49,546 705,454
Publicgsfery. . . . ... ... ...... 3,058,768 TA5,564 3,794,332
Publicworks. . . . ... ......... 3,080,741 3,080,741
Health . . ................. 40,235 3,358,935 —— 3,399,170
Humanservices . . .. ... ... 004 194,198 4476350 4,670,388
Eccmomic development and assistance . . . 1054 1,054
Ohier. . .. oo it i 371,354 244,986 30,703 647,043
Capitaloutlmy . . . .. .covveowuann - 280521 2,139.350 2419371
Debt service
Principal retirement |, ... ... 326,520 326,520
Interest and fiscal charges . . . . .. . .-, - _ 311,768 181,582 293,350
Total expenditees . . . .. ... L L 6,604,354 §2,646 469 438,288 2320932 30,703 22,040,746
E {deficiency) of ro
aver (upder) expendinmres |, L, ... . 1,148,995 441,853 {395,774} {1,003,585) (15,063} 172,426
Other financing sowrces (uses). R
Loanproceeds. . . ... ........ .. 211072 211,078
Orther fnmocing sowess. . ... ...l L . 149,156 T 525499 672,655
Other financinguses . . . .00 v v s (505,998) (505,998}
Prococds from capiral Jense. . . . ... .. 73,524 73,524
Opcrating rensfersin, . . ... .. .. .. . 371320 371320
Operating transfersont. . . .. ... ... (237,699) {139.621} (377,320)
Total other financing sources (uses) . . . (594,541} 668 480 371320 451.25%
Excess {(deficiency) of revenues snd
other financing sources over (onder}
expendinges myd other nses, . . . . L . 554 454 1,110,333 (22,454} {1,003,585) (15,063) 623 685
Fund baleness, Jenmary F. . . ..., 1,431,888 53542829 499,184 1,538,489 116,762 8,929,152
Increase {decrease) in reserve for inventory . 1,119 {6.229) . {4,510)
Fund balsnees, Detember 31, ., , ... .. $1.988,061 56,646,933 5476.730 ) Bﬂ:& 3101609 30548327

THE NOTES TO THE GENERAL PURPOSE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ARE AN INTEGRAL PART OF THIS STATEMENT
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- MORROW COUNTY, OHIO
. COMBINED STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES
AND CHANGES IN RETAINED EARNINGS/FUND EQUITY )
PROPRIETARY FUND TYPE AND DISCRETELY PRESENTED COMPONENT UNIT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1995

Total
Proprictary Primary
Fund Type - Government TFotal ]
(Memomndum Component (Memorandum
Enterprise QOniy) Unit Omty)
COpemting revenues: T
Chargesforservices . . . . ... ... ..-... —— 335381 535381 5412220 $447,601
Conmibutions from MRDD Board. . . .. . . . - [ 642 361 642361
Patient servicerevenue, nel . . L 2 v v v v v e v . 12.999,916 12,999,916 12999916
Other opeTAtINE IEVENUES. . .+ . v+ .+ .« o e e e 378579 978,57¢ 7,247 985,826
Total OpErating revenues . . . v v v v v v on v o 14,013,876 14,013,876 1,061,828 15,075,704
Operating expenses: - :
Persomalsevices. . .. v oot v n s e s e 5937312 5.937,312 207,321 6,144 633
Contractual services . . .. .. ... . e e - .3,360,725 3,360,725 - 123,052 3483777
Materialsandsupplies. . . . ... ... ... .. 2,824,051 2,824,051 20,182 2,844233
Depreciation . . . ... ... s .. mnvwvw-nv .. . 139667 739,667 ~ 1384 741,051
Provision for bad dl:b‘B. .............. 1,416,770 1,416,770 1,416,770
Contributed services from MRDD Board ..... 642361 642361
Other operatingexpense .. . . . .. .. v oo s - 351,075 351,075 36,424 387,499
Totwal operatior eXpenses. . . v v v v v s v o - - 14,629,600 14,625,600 1,030,724 15,660,324
Operating income (loss), . . . ... ..., ... (615,724) {615,724) 31,104 (584,620)
Nonoperating revenues (expensss):
Contrdbutions. . . .. .......... R 257,810 257,810 257.810
Gain ot (loss) op sale of fixed assets. . . . . . .. 817 817 817
Interest expense and fiscalcharges . . _ . . . .. (28.573%) (28.578) (28,578)
Investmentearnings - . . . . ... ha e a s . . 181,723 161,723 161,723
Loss on sale of invesmments . . . . . . e (7.435) (7,439) (7,439)
Total nonoperating revenues (expenses) . . . . . 384333 384333 T 384,333
Netincoms (Joss). . . . . <o v o e . (231.391) (231,391) 31,104 (200287
Depreciation on fixed 2ssets acquired by
conmibutedcapital . . . ... ... . - L. o 5127 5,127 5,127
Retained eernings, January 1 . . . .. . ... . .. . 9366738 9.366,738 7515 9,374,053
Retained earnings, December31. . . . ... . .. 9,140,474 9,140,474 38419 ©,178,853
Contributad capital at beginning of vear. . . . . . T 219,218 219215 215,215
Depreciation on fixed assets aquired by .
coniributed capisl | —— [ . {5,127) . (5.127) (5,127)
Contributed capital 2t cnd of VERT . ... ... . 214088 214,088 214,088
Fund equity, December31. . . . ... ... ... $9.354 562 59,354,562 538419 59,392,981

THE NOTES TO THE GENERAL PURPOSE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ARE AN INTEGRAL PART OF THIS STATEMENT



MORROW COLNTY, OHIO
COMBINED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
PROPRIETARY FUND TYPE AND DISCRETELY PRESENTED COMPONENT UNIT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1999

Total
Proprietary Primary
Fund Type * Government Total
{Memorandum Component {Memorandum
” Enterprise Only) Unit Omly)
Cash fiows from operating ctivities: c
Income (Joss) from operations . . . . ... ... ... .. [3615724) (8$615,724) $31,104 (5584,620)
Adjustments to reconcile mcome {foss) from operations to
net cash provided by (used in) operating activities:
Depreciation, . . . . . .. .. ... e 735,667 739,667 1384 741,051
Conmibutions . . . . .. . v v v s s e 257,810 257,810 7 257810
Changes in assets and iabilities: :
(Increase) in accoumts receivable. . . . L L L., L .. {1,006,232) (1,006,232) (10,709} {1,016,941)
(Increase) decreese ininventory . . ., . ... .. .. .. 15,107 15,107 (2,910) 12,197
Decreaseinprepayments. . . . .o v - . .o e s v 30,293 307293 . 30293
Increage (decreass) in aceounts payable . . . . . .. e 134471 134,471 (1,769) 132,702
{Decrease) m accrued wages and benefits . . . . . . . .. (100,%68) (100,968) (2,853) {103,821)
Increase indeferredrevenue . . . . . L L., L ... .. - 13,002 13,002
Incresse m due to other governments . . . . . . .. ... 63,451 . 63,451 63,451
Net cash provided by (used in) operzting activities . . . . . (482.125) (482,125} 27249 {454,876)
Cash flows from investing activities:
lossonzaleofinvestments . . . . . . . . o e i s e . {7.439) ’ © {7439 (7439
Interestreceived . . . .. ... e s e e s e . 161152 161,152~ 225 . 161,377
Net cash provided by investing acvities , . . . . ... .. 153,713 153,713 225 153,938
Cash flows from capital and related financing activities: . . .
Net procesds from lineoferedit. . . . . . ... ... ... _ 230000 250,000 250,000
Proceeds from sale of property and equipment . . . . . . . 1,500 1,506 1,500
Furchase of property and equipment. . . . . ..., . ... (1,214,228) {1,214,.228) (5,142) (1,219370)
Increase innotes receivabie , . . . . .. ... L .. P (32,167 . . . (35,16T) {35,167
Decrease in assets whose use isfimited . , . . . . . . ... 312,826 312,826 312,826
Proceeds from issuance of long-term debz, , . ... .. . . 432,000 432,000 4,000 436,000
Proceeds from capital lease obligations, . . . .., .. .. 5577215 . 557715 . 557,715
Repayment of jong-termdebt . . . . ... . ... e« - (533,075) (533,075) (4,371) {537,445)
Interestpaid . . ... ... ... ..o (28,578) 7(‘2.8_.578) (28.578)
Net cash used in capital and related financing activities. . . (257,607) (257,007) (5,513) {262,520)
Net increzse (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents. . . . . : (585,419} (585,419 21,961 (563,458}
Cash and cash equivalents et beginning of year, . . . . . . . - 768,855 769,835 9727 . T15,582
Cash and cash equivalsntsatendofyear . . . . . ... ... $184.436 5184436 $31,688 5216,124

THE NOTES TO THE GENERAL PURPOSE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ARE AN INTEGRAL PART OF THIS STATEMENT



MORROW COUNTY, OHIO

NOTES TO THE GENERAL PURPOSE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1999

NOTE 1 - DESCRIPTION OF THE COUNTY

Morrow County, Ohio (the County), was created in 1848. The County is governed by a
board of three commissioners elected by the voters of the County. Other officials elected by
the veters of the County that manage various segments of the County’s operations are the
Auditor, Treasurer, Recorder, Clerk of Courts, Coroner, Engineer, Prosecuting Attorney,
Sheriff, and 2 Common Pleas/Probate/Juvenile Court Judge. Although the elected officials
manage the internal operations of their respective departments, the County Commissioners
authonize expenditures as well as serve as the budget and taxing authority, contracting body,
and the chief administrators of public services for the entire County.

NOTE 2 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTENG POLICIES

The general purpose financial statements (GPFS) of the County have been prepared in
conformity with generally accepted accounting principles (GAAYP) as applied to government
units. The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is the accepted standard
sefting body for establishing governmental accounting and financial reporting principles.
The County, except for the Hospital, applies Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB)
Statements and Interpretations issued on or before November 30, 1989, to its proprietary
activities provided they do not conflict with or contradict GASB pronouncements. The
Hospital has elected to apply the provisions of all relevant pronouncements of the Financial
Accounting Standards Board (FASB), including those 1ssued after November 30, 1989. The
most significant of the County’s accounting policies are described below.

A. Reporting Entity

The County's reporting entity has been defined in accordance with GASB Statement No.
14, “W@QIEH&EHHE » The GPFS include all funds, account groups,
agencies, boards, commissions, and component units for which the County and the
County Commissioners are "accountable”. Accountability as defined in GASB Statement
No. 14 was evaluated based on financial accountability, the nature and significance of
the potential component umt's (PCU) relationship with the County and whether exclusion
would cause the County's GPFS 1o be misleading or incomplete. Among the factors
considered were separate legal standing; appointment of a voting majority of PCU's
board; fiscal dependency and whether a benefit or burden relationship exists; imposition
of will; and the nature and significance of the PCU's relationship with the County.



MORROW COUNTY, OHIO

NOTES TO THE GENERAL PURPOSE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1999

NOTE 2 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - (Continned)

x

The primary government consists of all funds, departments, boards, and agencies that are
not legally separate from the County. For the County, this includes the Morrow County
Board of Mental Retardation and Developmental Disabilities (the MRDD Board); the
Childrens’ Services Board; Morrow County Hospital (the Hospital); and other
departments and activities that are directly operated by the elected County officials.

Based on the foregoing criteria, the financial activities of the following PCUs have been
reflected in the accompanying GPFS as follows:

DISCRETELY PRESENTED COMPONENT UNIT

Whetstone Industries - Whetstone Industries (the Industries) is a legally separate, not-for-
profit corporation, served by a self-appointing Board of Trustees. The Industries, under
a contractual agreement with the MRDD Board, provides sheltered, transitional, and
outside employment for mentally retarded or handicapped adults in Morrow County. The
MRDD Board provides the Industries with available resources and staff for operation of
the Industries. Based on the significant resources and services provided by the county
to the Industries and the Industries sole purpose of providing assistance to retarded and
handicapped adults of the County, the Industries is reflected as a discretely presented
component unit of the County. )

EXCLUDED POTENTIAL COMPONENT UNITS

As counties are structured in Ohio, the County Auditor and County Treasurer,
respectively, serve as fiscal officer and custodian of funds for various agencies, boards,
and commissions. As fiscal officer, the County Auditor certifies the availability of cash
and appropriations prior to the processing of payments and purchases. As the custodian
of all public funds, the County Treasurer invests public monies held on deposit in the

County Treasury.

In the case of the separate agencies, boards, and commissions listed below the County
serves as fiscal agent and custodian, but is not accountable; therefore the operations of
the following PCUs have been exchided from the County's GPFS, but the fumds held on
behalf of these PCUs 1 the County Treasury are included m the agency funds within the
GPFS. ' T

()



MORROW COUNTY, OHIO

NOTES TO THE GENERAL PURPOSE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1999

NOTE 2 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - (Continued)
Morrow County Soil and Water Conservation District
Morrow County Disaster Services
Morrow County Law Library _
Morrow County General Health District

Information in the notes to the GPES is applicable to the primary government. When
information is provided relative to the component unit, it 1s specifically identified.

JOINTLY GOVERNED ORGANIZATION

Counry Risk Sharing Authority, Inc. (CORSA) - CORSA is jointly governed by forty-one
counties in Ohio. CORSA was formed as an Ohio nonprofit corporation for the purpose
of establishing the CORSA Insurance/Self-Insurance Program, a group primary and
excess mnsurance/self-msurance and risk management program. Member counties agree
to jointly participate 1n coverage losses and pay all contributions necessary for the
specified insurance coverages provided by CORSA. These coverages mclude
comprehensive general Liability, automobile Lability, certain property insurance and
public officials’ errors and omissions [iability insurance.

Each member has one vote on all matters requiring a vote, to be cast by a designated
representative. The affairs of the CORSA are managed by an elected board of not more
than nine trustees. Only county commissioners of member counties are eligible to serve
on the board. No county may have more than one representative on the board at any
time. Each member county’s control over the budgeting and financmg of CORSA is
limited to its voting authority and any representation it may have on the Board of
Trustees. ' L



MORROW COUNTY, OHIO

NOTES TO THE GENERAL PURPOSE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1999

NOTE 2 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - (Continued)

JOINT VENTURE WITHOUT EQUITY INTEREST

e 2Cove jces Board - The Delaware-Morrow
Mental Healrh and Recovery Servxces Board isa Jomt venture between Delaware and
Morrow Counties. The Board provides mental health and recovery services. Statutorily
created, the Board is made up of eighteen members, with ten appointed by the County
Commissioners, four by the State Director of Alcohol and Drug Addiction Services, and
four by the State Director of Mental Health. The County Commissioners’ appointments
are based on county population. Four of the ten members are appointed by the County
Commissioners from Morrow County while six are appointed by the County
Commissioners of Delaware County. Revenues to provide mental health and recovery
services are generated through a one mill district wide tax levy and through state and
federal grants.

The Board does not have amy ontstanding debt. The Board is not accumulating
significant financial resources nor experiencing fiscal stress that may canse an additional
benefit or burden to the County. The existence of the Board depends upon the continuing
participation of the County. Separate financial statements may be obtained by
contracting the Delaware-Morrow Health and Recovery Serv:ces Board 40 North
Sandusky Street, Suite 301, Delaware, Ohio 43015.

B. Basis of Presentation - Fund Acconnting

The County uses funds and account groups to report on their financial position and the
results of their operations. Fund accounting is designed to demonstrate legal compliance
and to aid financial management by segregating transactions related to certain County
functions or activities.

A fund is defined as a fiscal and accounting entity with a self balancing set of accounts
recording cash and other financial resources, together with all related liabilities and
tesidual equities or balances, and changes therein, which are segregated for the purpose
fo carrying on specific activities or attatning certain objectives in accordance with special
regulations, restrictions, or limitations. An account group is a financial reporting device
designed to provide accountability for certain assets and Habilities that are not recorded
in the funds because they do not directly affect net available expendable financial
Tesources.



MORROW COUNTY, OHIO

NOTES TO THE GENERAL PURPOSE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMRBER 31, 1999

NOTE 2 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - (Continued)

For financial statemnent presentation purposes, the various funds of the County are
grouped info the following generic fund types under the broad fund categomes
governmental, proprietary, and fiduciary.

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

Govemmental funds are those through which most governmental functions of the County
are financed. The acquisition, use, and balances of the County’s expendable financial
resources and the related current liabilities (except those accounted for in proprietary
funds) are accounted for through governmental funds. The following are the County’s
governmental fund types:

General Fund - The general fund is used to account for all activities of the County
not required to be included in another fund. The general fimd balance is available to
the County for any purpose provided it is expended or transferred according to the
general laws of Ohio.

Special Revenue Funds - The special revenue funds are used to account for proceeds
of specific revenue sources (other than expendable trusts or major capital projects)
that are legally resiricted to expenditures for specified purposes.

Debr Service Funds - The debt service funds are used to account for the accurnulation
of financial resources for, and the payment of, general obligation long-term debt
principal, interest and related costs.

Capiral Projects Funds - The capital project funds are used to acconnt for financial
resources to be nsed for the acquisition or construction of major capital facilities
(other than those financed by the proprietary funds).



MORROW COUNTY, OHIO

NOTES TO THE GENERAL PURPOSE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1999

NOTE 2 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - (Continued)
PROPRIETARY FUNDS

Proprietary fimds are used to account for the County’s ongoing activities which are
similar to those found in the private sector. The following i s the County’s proprietary
fund type:

Enterprise Funds - The enterprise funds are used to account for operations financed
and operated it 2 manner similar to private business enterprises. The intent of the
County is that the costs of providing goods or services to the general public on a
continuing basis be financed or recovered primarily through user charges.

FIDUCIARY FUNDS

Fiduciary funds are used to account for assets held by the County in a trustee capacity or
as an agent for individuals, private organizations, other governments, and/or other finds.
The following are the County’s fiduciary fund types:

Trust and Agency Funds - These funds include expendable trust funds and agency
funds. The expendable trust funds are accounted for in essentially the same manner
as governmental fumds. The agency funds are purely custodial in nature (assets equal
liabilities) and thus do not involve the measurement of operations. The agency funds
are presented on a budget basis, with note disclosure, if applicable, regarding items
which, in other fund types, would be subject to accrual (See Note 3).

ACCOUNT GROUPS

To make a clear distinction between fixed assets related to specific funds and those of
general government, and between long-term liabilities related to specific funds and those
of a general nature, the following acconnt groups are used:

General Fixed Assets Account Group - The general fixed assets account group is used
to account for all general fixed assets of the County, other than those ﬁxed assets

accounted for in the proprietary funds.

QQEMLQLMMH&AQQQL&LQM The general long-term obligations

account group is used to account for all long-term obligations of the County, except
those accounted for in the proprietary funds.



MORROW COUNTY, OHIO

NOTES TO THE GENERAL PURPOSE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1999

NOTE 2 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - (Continued)

COMPONENT UNITS

Component Unizs - Component units are either legally separate organizations for
which the elected officials of the County are not financially accountable, or legally

separate organizations for which the nature and significance of its relationship with
the County is such that exclusion would not cause the County's financial statement
to be misleading or incomplete. The County considers Whetstone Industries, Inc. to
be a separate discretely presented component unit of the County.

C. Basis of Accounting and Measurement Focas

Basis of accounting refers to when revenues and expenditures or expenses are recognized
m the accounts and reported in the financial statements. Basis of accounting relates to
the timing of the measurements made. The modified accrual basis of accounting is
followed for governmental and expendable trust funds. Revenues are recognized in the
period when measurable and available to meet obligations incurred during the year. The
County defines measurable as meaning collectible within 60 days of year end. Revenues
which are accrued include earnings on investments; fines and forfeitures; sales and use
taxes; federal and state grants and entitlements; and charges for current services.

Deferred revenues, as reported on the combined balance sheet, arise when a potential
revenue does not meet both the measurable and available criteria for recognition in the
current period. In subsequent periods, when both revenne recognition criteria are met,
the liability for deferred revenue is removed from the combined balance sheet and
revenue is recognized. Special assessments are recorded as deferred revenue because
they do not meet the availability criteria. Property taxes that are measurable as of
December 31, 1999, but are intended to finance 2000 operations and delingunent property
taxes, whose availability is inferminable, have been recorded as deferred revenue.
Special assessments are also recorded as deferred revenue because they do not meet the
availability criteria. ' '



MORROW COUNTY, OHIO

NOTES TO THE GENERAL PURPOSE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1999

NOTE 2 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - (Continued)

Expenditures are recognized when the related liability is expected to be liquidated with
expendable available financial resources with the following exceptions: general long
term obligation principal and interest is reported only when paid, and the costs of
accumulated unpaid vacation and sick leave are reported in the period due and payable
rather than in the period earned by employees. Allocations of cost, such as depreciation
and amortization, are not recognized in the governmental funds.

The proprietary iunds are accounted for on the accrual basis of accounting. The
component unit is also accounted for using the accrual basis of accounting in accordance
with Statement of Accounting Standards Nos. 116 and 117. Revennes are recognized in
the period eamed and expenses are recognized in the period incurred. Unbilled service
charges receivable are recognized as revenue at year end.

The accounting and financial reporting treatment applied to a find is determined by its
measurement focus. All governmental funds and expendable trust funds are accounted
for using a current financial resources measurement focus. With this measurement focus,
only current assets and current liabilities generally are included on the balance sheet.
Operating statements of these funds present increases (i.e., revenues and other financing
sources) and decreases (i.e., expenditures and other financing uses) in net current assets.

All proprietary funds and the component unit are accounted for on a flow of economic
resources measurement focus. With this measurement focus, all assets and all hiabilities
associated with the operation of these funds are included on the balance sheet. Fund
equity (i.e., net total assets) is segregated into contributed capital and retained earnings
components. Propretary find type operating statements present increases (e.g.,
revenues) and decreases (e.g., expenses) in net total assets.

D. Budgetary Process

The budgetary process is prescribed by provisions of the Ohio Revised Code and entails
the preparation of budgetary documents within an established timetable. The major
documents prepared are the tax budget, the certificate of estimated resources, and the
appropriations resolution, all of which are prepared on the budgetary basis of acconnting,
The certificate of estimated resources and the appropriations resolution are subject to
amendment thronghout the year with the legal restriction that appropriations cannot
exceed estimated resources, as certified. All funds, other than agency funds, legally are
required to be budgeted and appropriated.



MORROW COUNTY, OHIO

NOTES TO THE GENERAL PURPOSE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMRER 31, 1999

NOTE 2 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - (Continued)

Budgetary information for the Industries and the Hospital are not reported because. it is
not included in the entity for which the “appropriated budget” is adopted.

Tax Budget

A budget of estimated revenues and expenditures is submitted to the County Auditor, as
secretary of the County Budget Commission, by July 20 of each year, for the period
January 1 to December 31 of the following year. The budget includes proposed
expenditures and the means of financing for all funds. The express purpose of this
budget document is to reflect the need for existing or increased tax rates.

i ree

The County Budget Commission reviews estimated revenues and determines if the
budget substantiates a need to levy all or part of previonsly anthorized taxes. The County
Budget Commuission certifies its acfions to the County by September 1. As part of this
certification, the County receives the official certificate of estimated resources, which
states the estimated beginming of year fund balance and projected revenne of each fund.
Prior to December 31, the County must revise its budget so the fotal coniemplated
expenditures from any fund during the ensning fiscal year will not exceed the amount
available as stated in the certificate of estimated resources. The revised budget then
serves as the basis for the annual appropriations measure. On or about January 1, the
certificate of estimated resources is amended to include the actual unencumbered fund
balances from the preceding year. The certificate may be amended further during the
year if the County Anditor determines, and the County Budget Comrhission agrees, that
an estimate needs either to be increased or decreased. The amounts reported on the
budgetary statements reflect the amounts in the final amended official certificate of
estimated resources issued during 1999.

L

A temporary appropriations resolution to control expenditures may be passed on or about
January 1 of each year for the period January 1 to March 31. An annual appropriations
resolution must be passed by April 1 of each year for the period January 1 io December
31. The appropriations resolution may be amended during the year as new information
becomes available, provided thai total fund appropriations do not exceed current
estimated resources, as certified.



MORROW COUNTY, CHI1O

NOTES TO THE GENERAL PURPOSE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1999

NOTE 2 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - (Continued)

The allocation of appropriations among departments and objects within a fund may be
modified during the year by a resolution of the County Commissioners. Several
supplemental appropriation resolutions were legally enacted by the County
Commissioners during the vear. The budget figures which appear on the statements of
budgetary comparisons represent the final appropriation amounts, including all
amendments and modifications.

Budgeted Leve] of Expenditures

Administrative control is maintained through the establishment of detailed line-item
budgets. The legal level of budgetary control is at the object level within each
department. Expenditures plus encumbrances may not legally exceed appropriations at
the level of appropriation. Appropriations are made to fund, department, and object level
(i.e., general fund - Commissioners - salaries, supplies, equipment, contract repairs and
services, travel, and other expenses). Advances-in and advances-out are not required to
be budgeted since they represent a short-term cash flow resource and are intended o be

repaid.
E ces

As part of formal budgetary control, purchase orders, contracts, and other commitments
for the expenditure of monies, are encunibered and recorded as the equivalent of
expenditures on the non-GAAP budgetary basis in order to reserve that the portion of the
applicable appropriation and to determine and maintain legal compliance. On the GAAP
basis, encumbrances outstanding at year end are reported as reservations of fimd balances
for subsequent-year expenditiwes for governmental and expendable trust funds and
reported in the notes to the financial statements for proprietary funds.

Lapsing of Appropriations

At the close of each year, the unencumbered balance of each appropriation reverts to the
respective fund from which it was appropriated and becomes subject to future
appropriations. The encumbered appropriation balance is carried forward to the
succeeding fiscal year and is not reappropriated. '

10



MORROW COUNTY, OHIO

NOTES TO THE GENERAL PURPOSE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1999

NOTE 2 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - (Continued)

E. Notes Receivable

Notes receivable represent the right to receive repayment for certain loans made by the
County. These loans are based upon writien agreements between the County and the
various loan recipients.

F. Cash and Investments

To improve cash managemnent, cash received by the County is pooled. Monies for all
funds, including proprietary funds, are maintained in this pool. Individual fund integrity
is maintained throngh the County’s records. Each fund’s interest in the pool 1s presented
as “Equity in Pooled Cash and Investmentis” on the combined balance sheet.

During fiscal year 1999, investments were limited to certificaies of deposif, U.S.
Government Securities, U.S. Treasury Notes and Bonds and investmenis in the State
Treasurer’s Investment Pool (STAR Ohio).

Investments in nonparticipating interest-earning investment contracts, such as certificates
of deposit, are reported at cost. All other investments are Teported at fair market value.

Under existing Ohio statuies all investiment earnings are assigned to the general fund
uniess statutorily required to be credited to a specific fund. Interest revenue credited to
the general fund during fiscal 1999 amounted to $758,714 which inclndes $660,344
assigned from other County funds.

The County has segregated bank accounts for momes held separate from the County’s
central bank account. These interest bearing depository accounts are presenied on the
combined balance sheet as “Cash in Segregated Accounts” and “Investments in
Segregated Accounts” since they are not required to be deposited into the County
treasary.

For purpose of the combined statement of cash flows and for presentation on the
combined balance sheet, investments of the cash management pool and investments with
original maturities of three months or less at the time they are purchased by the County
are considered to be cash equivalents. Investments with an initial maturity of more than
three months are reported as investments.

11



MORROW COUNTY, CHIO

NOTES TO THE GENERAL PURPOSE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1999

NOTE 2 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - (Continued)

-

An analysis of the Treasurer's investment account at year end 1s provided in Note 4.

G. Inventories of Materials and Supplies

Inventories of materials and supplies of governmental funds are stated at cost while
inventories of proprietary funds are stated at the lower of cost or market. For all funds,
cost is determined on a first-in, first-out basis. The costs of inventory iiems are
recognized as expenditures in governmental funds when purchased and as expenses in
the proprietary funds when used. The total of inventories at year end is reported as 2
reservation of fund balance in the governmental funds because it does not represent
available, spendable resources.

H. Property, Plant, Equipment, and Depreciation

The fixed asset values were initially determined at December 31, 1996, assigning original
acquisition costs when such information was available. In cases where information
supporting criginal costs was not available, estimated historical costs were developed.
For certain fixed assets, the estimates were arrived at by indexing estimated current costs
back to the estimated year of acquisition. Donated fixed assets are capitalized at their
fair market value on the date donated. ' '

The costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or
materially extend asset lives are not capitalized. Improvements which extend the useful
life or increase the capacity or operating efficiency of the asset are capitalized at cost.

1. General Fixed Asseis Account Group

General fixed assets are capitalized at cost (or estimated historical cost) and updated
for the cost of additions and disposals during the year in the general fixed assets
account group. Contributed fixed assets are recorded at their fair market values as
of the date donated. The County follows a policy of not capitalizing infrastructure,
which is defined as assets that are immovable and of value only to the County, G.e.
roads, bridges, etc.), ormamental artifacts, or any asset with a cost of less than $500.
No depreciation 1s recognized for assets in the account group. Interest on debt issned
to construct general fixed assets is not capitalized in the account group.



MORROW COUNTY, OHIO

NQOTES TO THE GENERAL PURPOSE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1999

NOTE 2 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - (Continued)

2. Enterprise Funds

Property, plant, and equipment reflected in the enterprise funds are stated at cost (or
estimated historical) and updated for the cost of additions and disposals during the
year. Contributed fixed assets are recorded at their fair market value as of the date
donated. Depreciation and amortization have been provided on a siraight-line basis
over the foliowing estimated useful lives:

Description Lstimated Life
Land Improvements B 5-25 years
Equipment 10-50 years
Sewer Lines 50 years

The County also capitalizes the cost of major renovations which extend the useful Iife
of an asset or which enable it to perform new or more valuable services. Interest on tax
exempt debt issued to construct enterprise fund fixed assets is capitalized, net of interest
earned on the proceeds of such debt.

I. Compensated Absences

Compensated absences of the County consist of vacation leave and sick leave to the
extent that payment to the employee for these absences is attributable to services aiready
rendered and are not contingent on a specific event that is outside the control of the
County and the employee.

In accordance with the provisions of GASB Statement No. 16, “Accounting for
Compensated Absences”, a liability for vacation leave is accrued if a) the employees'
righis to payment are atintbutable to services already rendered; and b) it is probable that
the employer willi compensate the smployess for the benefits through paid time off or
other means, such as cash payment at termination or retirement. A Hability for sick leave
is based on the sick leave accumulated af the balance sheet date by those employees who
are currently eligible to receive termination (severance) payments, as well as those
employees expected to become eligible in the fiture. Sick leave benefits are accrued
using the “Vesting” method. The County records z liability for accumulated unused
vested sick leave after fifieen years of service with the County or over fifty-five years of
age. :

13



MORROW COUNTY, OHIO

NOTES TO THE GENERAL PURPOSE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1999

NOTE 2 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - (Continued)

The total Liability for vacation and sick leave payments has been calculated using pay
rates in effect at the balance sheet date, and reduced to the maximum payment allowed
by labor contract and/or statute, plus applicable additional salary related payments.

For governmental funds, the current portion of unpaid compensated absences is the
amount expected to be paid using available expendable financial resources. These
amounts are recorded in the account “compensated absences payable” in the fund from
which the employees who have accumnulated unpaid leave are paid. The non-current
portion of vacation and sick leave accumulated by governmental fund type employees has
been recorded in the general long-term obligations account group because it will not be
liguidated with expendable, available resources. General long-term obligations are not
limited to Habilities arising from debt issuances, but may also include non-current
Habilities and other commitments that are not current Habilities properly recorded in
govermmenta} funds. Vacation and sick leave for governmental fund type employees is
recognized as an expenditure when used. Vacation and sick leave in the proprietary fimd
types is recorded as an expense when earned, and the liability for unused amounts is
shown as a fund Iiability. o

J. Imtergovermmental Revenues

Unrestricted intergovernmental revenues received on the basis of entiflement are
recorded as receivables and revenues when the enfitlement occurs. Reimbursement type
grants are recorded as receivables and revenues when the related expenditures are
incurred. Grants for proprietary fimd operations are Tecognized as revenue when
measurable and earned.

K. Long-Term Obligations

Long-term obligations for general obligation bonds, Engineers Vehicle Toans, Ohio Water
Development Authority (OWDA) loans, vested sick and vacation leave and capital lease
obligations that are expected to be paid from the governmental funds are shown i the
general long-term obligations account grotp, while those expected to be paid from
proprietary funds are shown as a liability of those fumds.

14



MORROW COUNTY, OHIO

NOTES TO THE GENERAL PURPOSE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1999

NOTE 2 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - (Continued)

Under Ohio law, a debt retirement fund must be created and used for the payment of all
debt principal and interest. GA AP requires the allocation of the debt liability among the
capital projects and enterprise funds, and the general long-term obligations accoumt
group, with principal and interest payments on matured general obligation long-term debt
being reported in the debt service find. To comply with GAAP reporting requirements,
the County’s debt retirement find has been split among the appropriate funds. Debt
service fund resources used to pay both principal and interest have also been allocated
accordingly.

L. Inferfund Transactions

During the course of normal operations, the County has numerous transactions between
funds. The most significant include:

1.

Transfers of resources from one fund to another fund. The resources transferred are
to be expended for operations by the receiving find and are recorded as operating
transfers, with the exception of agency funds, which do not show transfers of
resources as operating transfers.

Reimbursements from one fund to another are treated as expenditures/ expenses in
the reimbursing find and a reduction in expenditures/expenses in the reimbursed
fund. Quasi-external transactions are accounted for as revenues, expenditures or
EXPEnses.

Short-term interfund balances, related to charges for goods and services rendered, are
reflected as “due to/from other funds”.

Short-term interfimd loans, accrued interfund reimbursements and accrued operating
transfers are reflected as “interfund loans receivable/payable.” The County had no
interfimd loans receivable or payable at December 31, 1999.

Long-term interfund loans that will be repaid within the next year are termed
"advances" and are shown as reservations of fund balances on the combined balance
sheet for those funds that report advances to other funds as assets because they are
not spendable, available resources. The County had no long-term advances at
December 31, 1999,

15



NOTE 2

MORROW COUNTY, OHIO

NOTES TO THE GENERAL PURPOSE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1999

- SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - (Continued)

See Note 5 for an analysis of the County’s interfund transactions.
Fund Balance Reserves

Reserved fund balances indicate that portion of find equity which is not avajlable for
current appropriation or use. The unreserved portions of filnd equity reflected in the
governmental funds are available for use within the specific purposes of the funds.

The County reports amounts representing material and supply inventories, prepayments,
encumbrances outstanding, debt service, and notes receivable as reservations of fund
balance in the governmental funds.

Prepayments

Prepayments for governmental funds represent cash disbursements that are not current
expendable resources. These items are reported as fund assets on the balance sheet using
the allocation method, which amortizes their cost over the pertods benefitting from the
advance payment. At year end, because prepayments are not available to finance future
governmental fund expenditures, the fiind balance is reserved by an amount equal o the

carrving value of the asset. '

Net Patient Service Revenue

The Hospital has agreements with third-party payors that provide for payments to the
Hospital at amounts different from its established rates. Payment arrangements include
prospectively determined rates per discharge reimbursed costs, discounted charges and
per diem payments. Net patient service revenue is reporied at the estimated net realizable
amounts from patients, third-party payors, and others for services rendered, including
estimated retroactive adjustments under reimbursement agreements with third-party
payors. Retroactive adjustinents are accrued on an estimated basis in the period the
related services are rendered and adjusted in future periods as final setilements are
determined.

16



MORROW COUNTY, OHIO

NOTES TO THE GENERAL PURPOSE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1999

NOTE 2 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - (Continued)

P.

Esiimates

The preparation of the GPFS in conformity with GA AP principles requires management
to make estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts reported in the financial
statements and accompanying notes. Actual results may differ from those estimates.

Contributed Capital

Contributed capital represents grants resiricted for capital construction. These assets are
recorded at their fair market value on the date contributed and are not subject to
repayment. Depreciation on those proprietary fimd type assets acquired or constructed
with contributed resources is expensed and closed to contributed capital at year-end.

Tetal Columns on General Purpose Financial Statements

Total columns on the GPFS are captioned "Memorandum Only" to indicate that they are
presented only to facilitate financial analysis. Data in these columns do not present
financial position, resulis of operations, or cash flows in conformity with GAAP. Neither
is such data comparable to a consolidation. Interfimd-type eliminations have not been
made in the aggregation of this data.

17



MORROW COUNTY, OHIO

NOTES TO THE GENERAL PURPOSE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1999

NOTE 3 - ACCOUNTABILITY AND COMPLIANCE
A. Prior Period Adjustment to Budgetary-Basis Statement
The following differences in the budgetary statement beginning balances occurred due

to the County’s treatment of encumbrances. The effect of this adjustment on fund
balances as previously reported is as follows:

Special Debt Capital
Fund balances
as previously reported $1,552,445 $5,072,513  §499,184 $4.572 607

Restatement for encumbrances (1.399.479) 33239 _ (20,185 _ 411

Fund balances

as of January 1, 1999 3 152,966 $35,103,772 $478.299 §4.373.018
B. Prior Period Adjustment
The County understated the liability for Engineer Vehicles loans payable at December

31, 1998. The effect of this adjustment on the balance of the general long-term
obligations group as previously reported as of December 31, 1998 is as follows:

General Long-Term
Obligations Account
—— Growp
Account balance as previously reported - 52,603,409
Restatement for understated
loans payable liability 168,405
Restated account balance ) , , ] o
as of January 1, 1999 - 2,77 4

18



MORROW COUNTY, OHIO

NOTES TO THE GENERAL PURPOSE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1999

NOTE 3 - ACCOUNTABILITY AND COMPLIANCE - (Continued)
C. Agency Funds

The following are accruals for agency fund types, which, in other fund types, would be
recognized in the combined balance sheet:

LIABILITIES

Accrued wages and benefits 5 2,850
Due to other governments 159,102
Total $161,952

NOTE 4 - EQUITY IN POOLED CASH AND INVESTMENTS
A. Primary Government

Moneys held by the County are classified by State Statute into fwo categories. Active
moneys are public moneys deterrnined to be necessary to meet current demand upon the
County treasury. Active moneys must be maintained either as cash in the County
freasury, in commercial accounts payable or withdrawable on demand, including
negotiable order of withdrawal (NOW) accounts, or in money market deposit accounts.

Protection of the County’s deposits is provided by the Federal Deposit Insurance
Corporation (FDIC), by eligible securities pledged by the financial institution as security
for repayment, by surety company bonds deposited with the treasurer by the financial
institution or by a singie collateral pool established by the financial institution to secure
the repayment of all public moneys deposited with the institution.

Moneys held by the County which are not considered active are classified as inactive.
Inactive moneys may be deposited or invested in the following securities:

15. United States Treasury Notes, Bills, Bonds, or any other obligation or security issued

by the United States Treasury or any other obligaiion guaranteed as to principal or
interest by the United States;
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MORROW COUNTY, OHIO

NOTES TO THE GENERAL PURPOSE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1959

NOTE 4 - EQUITY IN POOLED CASH AND INVESTMENTS - (Continued)

2.

10.

Bonds, notes, debentures, or any other obligations or securities issued by any federal
government agency or instrumentality, including but not limited to, the Federal
National Mortgage Association, Federal Home Loan Bank, Federal Farm Credit
Bank, Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation, Government National Mortgage
Association, and Student Loan Marketing Association. All federal agency securities
shall be direct issnances of federal government agencies or instrumentalities;

Written repurchase agreements in the securities listed above provided that the market
value of the securities subject to the repurchase agreement must exceed the principal
value of the agreement by at least two percent and be marked to market daily, and
that the term of the agreement must not exceed thirty days;

Bonds and other obligations of the State of Ohio or its political subdivisions,
provided that such political subdivisions are located wholly or partly within the
County;

Time certificates of deposit or savings or deposit accounts, including, but not limited
to, passbook accoumts;

No-load money market mutual funds consisting exclusively of obligations described
in division (1) or (2) and repurchase agreements secured by such obligations,
provided that investments in securities described m this division are made only
through eligible institutions; ' '

The State Treasurer’s Investment Pool (STAR Ohio);

Securities lending agreements in which the County lends securities and the eligible
inshitution agrees to exchange either securities described in division (1) or (2) or cash
or both securities and cash, equal value for equal value;

High grade commercial paper in an amount not to exceed five percent of the
County’s total average portfolio; and

Bankers acceptances for a period not to exceed 270 days and in an amount not to
exceed ten percent of the County’s total average portfolio.



MORROW COUNTY, OHIO

NOTES TO THE GENERAL PURPOSE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1999 '

NOTE 4 - EQUITY IN POOLED CASH AND INVESTMENTS - (Continued)

Investments in stripped principal or interest obligations, reverse repurchase agreements
and derivatives are prohibited. The issuance of taxable notes for the purpose of arbitrage,
the use of leverage and short selling are also prohibited. An investment must mature
within five years from the date of purchase unless matched to a specific obligation or
debt of the County, and must be purchased with the expectation that it will be held to
maturity. Investments may only be made through specified dealers and institutions.
Payment for investments may be made only upon deltvery of the securities representing
the investments to the treasurer or qualified trustee or, if the securities are not represented
by a certificate, upon receipt of confirmation of transfer from the custodian.

Cash on Hand: At year end, the County had $22,216 in undeposited cash on hand which
is included on the combined balance sheet of the County as part of “Equity in Pooled
Cash and Investments.”

The following information classifies deposits and investments by categories of risk as

dcﬁncd in GASB Statemcnt No 3 MMMMMW

Deposits: At year end, the carrying amount of the County’s deposits, including
nonnegotiable certificates of deposit, was 511,719,328 and the bank balance was
$12,445,317. Ofthe bank balance:

1. $1,354,023 was covered by federal depository insurance; and

2. $11,091,294 was uninsured and uncollateralized as defined by GASB even
though it was covered by collateral held by third party trusiees pursuant to
Section 135.81, Ohio Reviseéd Code, in single institution collateral pools securing
all public funds on deposit with specific depository institutions. Although all
state statutory requirements for the deposit of money had been followed, non-
compliance with federal requirements could potentially subject the County to a
successful claim by the ¥FDIC.



MORROW COUNTY, OHIO

NOTES TO THE GENERAL PURPOSE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1999

NOTE 4 - EQUITY IN POOLED CASH AND INVESTMENTS - (Continued)
Investments: The County’s investments are reguired to be categorized to give an
indication of the level of risk assumed by the County at vear end. Category 1 includes
investments that are insured or registered or for which the securities are held by the
County or its agent in the Counfty’s name. Category 2 includes uninsured and
unregistered investments for which the securities are held by the counterparty’s trust
department or agent in the County’s mame. Category 3 includes uninsured and
unregistered investments for which the securities are held by the counterparty, or by its
trust department or agent, but not in the County’s name. STAR Ohio is an unclassified
investment since it is not evidenced by securities that exist in physical or book entry

form.
Category Fair
1 2 3 , Yalue
U.S. Government Securities $1,238281 § ---  $ --- . $1,238281
1.5, Treasury Noies and Bonds 75,000 _  --- - 75,000
$1313,281 % --- -
Investment in State
= Treasurer’s Investment Pool o 3,591.94
Total Investments $5305.222

STAR Ohio is an investinent pool managed by the State Treasurer’s Office, which allows
governments within the State to pool their fimds for investment purposes. STAR Ohio is not
registered with the SEC as an investment company, but does operate in 2 manner consistent with
Rule 2a7 of the Invesiment Company Act of 1940. Tnvestments in STAR Ohio are valued at
STAR Ohio’s share price, which is the price the investment could be sold for on December 31,
1999,



NOTE 4 -

MORROW COUNTY, OHIO

NOTES TO THE GENERAL PURPOSE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1999

EQUITY IN POOLED CASH AND INVESTMENTS - (Countinued)

A reconciliation between the classifications of cash and cash equivalents and investments on the
combined balance sheet and the classifications of deposits and investments presented above per
GASB Statement No. 3 is as follows:

Cash and Cash
Equivalents/Deposits =~ _ _Investments
GASB Statement No. 9 D _-54903,243 ] $12,099,091
Cash on Hand ' 22216 _ —_—
Investments of the Cash -

Management Pool: . _ o
Certificates of Deposit 10,785,810 (10,785,810)
State Treasurer’s Investment Pool (3,991,941) o _3.991.941

GASB Statement No. 3 C $11,719.328 $5,305.222
Component Unit

At December 31, 1999, the carrying amount of the component unit’s demand deposits,
including a nonnegotiable certificate of deposit, was $37,877 and the bank balance was
$42,351. The entire bank balance was covered by FDIC. In accordance with GASB
Statement No. 9, the certificate of deposit is reported as an “Investment in Segregated
Accounts” on the combined balance sheet since the maturity is greater than ninety days
from the date of purchase. In addition, the component unit has $2,300 of undeposited
cash on hand which is included in “Cash in Sepregated Accounts™. There are no
statutory guidelines regarding the deposit and mvestment of fimds by a not-for-profit
corporation.



MORROW COUNTY, OHIO

NOTES TO THE GENERAL PURPOSE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1999

NOTE 5 - INTERFUND TRANSACTIONS

-

A. The following is a summarized breakdown of the County’s operating transfers for 1999:

General Fund $ --- $(237,699)
Specia] Revenue Funds 7 _
Motor Vehicle and Gas Tax - (139,621)
ervi ds - 7
Motor Vehicle Bond Retirement 139,621 --
Jail Bond Retirement 237.699 -
Total $377.320 ' $(377,320)

B. Interfund balances, related to charges for goods and services rendered, at December 31,
1999, consist of the following amounts due to and due from other funds:

Due From Due To
Oiber Funds _QOther Funds

General Fund & $27.,345 $ 3,006
Special Revenue Funds )

Law Enforcement - T e I 8,000

Marriage Licenses 849 _ S

Indigent Guardianship - . 600 —--

Court Computerization 3,818 ———

DRETAC , - 4,000

OMVI1 - 571 N
Debt Service Funds ,

MRDD Health Bond Retirement 105,541 -
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MORROW COUNTY, OHIO

NOTES TO THE GENERAL PURPOSE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1999

NOTE 5 - INTERFUND TRANSACTIONS - {Continued)

Due From Due To
Other Funds Other Funds

Capita] Projects Funds

County Court Special Projects $ 7,533 I

Children and Family Center --— $105,541
Agency Funds

County Highway ' 2,566 -

County Court Agency ’ - - - 28.276
Total $148,823 $148,823

NOTE 6 - PROPERTY TAXES

Property taxes include amounts levied against all real, public utility and tangible (used in
business) property located in the County. Real property taxes and public vtility taxes are
levied after October 1 on the assessed value listed as of the prior January 1, the lien date.
Assessed values are established by state law at 35% of appraised market value. Public utility
property taxes are assessed on tangible personal property, as well as land and improvements,
at true value (normally 50% of cost). Tangible personal property taxes attach as a lien and
are levied on January 1 of the current year. Tangible personal property assessments are 25%
of true value. The assessed value upon which the 1999 taxes were collected was
$319,900,850. The full tax rate for all County opérations applied to real property fo:r fiscal
year ended December 31, 1999, was $17.10 per $1,000 of assessed valuation.



MORROW COUNTY, OHIO

NOTES TO THE GENERAL PURPOSE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1999

NOTE 6 - PROPERTY TAXES - (Continued)

The assessed values of real and tangible personal property upon which 1999 property tax
Teceipts were based are as follows:

Real Property ,
Agricultural/Residential $236,225,180
Commercial/Industrial/Mineral ) 23,258,780
Tangible Personal Property 24,856,660
Public Utility _35.560,230
Total Assessed Value $£319,900.850

Real property taxes are payable annually or semi-annuaily. If paid annualiy, payment is due
December 31. If paid semi-annually, the first payment i1s due December 31 and the
remainder payable by June 20. Under certain circimmstances, state statute permits earlier or
later payment dates to be established.

The County Treasurer collects property tax on behalf of all taxing districts within the County.
The County Auditor periodically remits to the taxing districts their portions of the taxes
collected. Collections of the taxes and remittance of them to the taxmg districts are
accounted for in various agency funds of the County.

Tangible personal property taxes for unincorporated and single county businesses are due
semi-annually, with the first payment due April 30 and the remainder payable by September
20. Due dates are normally extended an additional 30 days. The due date for the entire tax
for inter-county businesses is September 20 or the extended date. The first $10,000 of
taxable value is exempt from taxation for each business by state law. The lien date s either
December 31 or the end of their fiscal year (for mcorporated busmesses in operation more
than one year). Since each business must file a return to the County Anditor, the tangible
personal taxes are not known until all the returns are received. '

"Real and Other Taxes" receivable represents delinquent real and tangible personal property
and public utility taxes outstanding as of the last settlement (net of allowances for estimated
uncollectibles) and real and public utility taxes which were measurable as of the year end.



MORROW COUNTY, OHIO

NOTES TO THE GENERAL PURPOSE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMRBER 31, 1999

NOTE 6 - PROPERTY TAXES - (Continued)
Since the current levy is not intended to finance 1999 operations, the receivable is offset by
a credit to "Deferred Revenue". The delinquent real, public utility and tangible personal
property taxes that will become available to the County within the first 60 days of 2000 are
shown as 1999 revenue; the remainder is shown as "Deferred Revenue".

The eventual collection of significantly all real and public utility property taxes (both current
and delinquent) 1s reasonably assured due to the County's ability to force foreclosure of the
properties on which the taxes are levied.

NOTE 7 - PERMISSIVE SALES AND USE TAX

The County Commissioners, by resolution, imposed a 1.5 percent tax on all retail sales made
in the County, except sales of motor vehicles and on the storage, use, or consuraption of
tangible personal property in the County, including motor vehicles not subject to the sales
tax. Vendor collections of the tax are paid to the State Treasurer by the twenty-third day of
the month following collection. The State Tax Commissioner certifies to the State Auditor
the amount of the tax to be returned to the County. The Tax Commissioner’s certfication
must be made within forty-five days after the end of each month. The State Auditor then has
five days in which to draw the warrant payable to the County.

Proceeds of the tax are credited entirely to the general fund. Amounts that are measurable
and available at year end are accrued as revenue. Sales and use tax for 1999 amounted to
$2,333,726. ' ' o :

NOTE 8 - RECEIVABLES

Receivables at December 31, 1999, consisted of iaxes, interest, noies, accounts (billings for
user charged services), special assessments, interfund {ransactions related o charges for
goods and services rendered and intergovermmental receivables arising from grants,
entitlements and shared revenue. All intergovernmental receivables have been classified as
“Due From Other Governments” on the combined balance sheet and all interfund
transactions related to charges for goods and services rendered have been classified as “Due
From Other Funds”™ on the cornbined balance sheet. Receivables have been recorded to the
extent that they are both measurable and available at December 31, 1999, as well as intended
to finance fiscal 1999 operations.



MORROW COUNTY, OHIO

NOTES TO THE GENERAL PURPOSE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1999 ‘

NOTE B - RECEIVABLES - (Continued)

A summary of the principal items of receivables follows:

Fund/Description

Ceperal Fund
Sales taxes
Real and other taxes
Accounts
Accrued mterest
Due from other funds
Intergovernmental

ecial Revenue 8
Real and other taxes
Accounts

Accrued interest
Due from other funds
Intergovernmental
Notes

Debt Service Funds
Special assessments
Due from other funds

1tal ] ds
Accoumnts

Accrued interest
Due from other funds

rise ds
Accounts
Accrued interest
Notes

Agency Funds
Special assessments
Real and other taxes
Accounts
Due from other funds

_Amount

$ 305,790
1,290,416
276,024
149,287
27,345
105,587

2,502,107
- 18,780
900

5,838
615,080
149,229

o ) 72,578
' 105,541

350
17,987
7.533

3,967,607
571
95,833

72,578
15,395,958
707

- - 2,566



MORROW COUNTY, OHIO

NOTES TO THE GENERAL PURPOSE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1999

NOTE 9 - NOTES RECEIVABLE

A sumnmary of the changes 1n notes receivable reported in the special revenue funds during

1999 follows:
Balance at Balance at
12/31/98 NewlLoans  Repavinents 12/31/99
Special Revenue Funds }
Community Development Block
Grant Commercial Loans $ 79,559 5 --- % (6,148) "8 73,411
Water/Sewer
Revolving Loans . 48,153 2,412 (5,527) 45,038
Rural Hardship
Revolving Loans _ 0 31,668 (888} 30780

8127712 334080 $(12.563) £149.229
NOTE 10 - RESTRICTED ASSETS

Assets whose use is Iinmited comsists of mvested funds securing bank debt and invested
funds designated by the Hospital’s Board of Trustees for the replacement, improvement, and
expansion of the Hospital’s facilities. Investments consist principally of U.S. Government
Securities and are recorded at cost which approximates market. The composition of assets
whose use is limited at December 31, 1999, is set forth in the following table:

Board Restricted for capital improvements:

Cash and cash equivalents $ 97,550
Accrued interest receivable 12,381
Investments 201,250

$611,181



MORROW COUNTY, OHIO

NOTES TO THE GENERAL PURPOSE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DPECEMBER 31, 1999

NOTE 11 - FIXED ASSETS
A. Enterprise Fund Fixed Assets

A summary of the enterprise find fixed assets at December 31, 1999 is as follows:

Land and improvements S 469,409
Buildings 3,748,964
Equipment 9,660,446
Construction in progress L 413,851
Sewer lines 236,370
Total gross assets 14,549,040
Less: acctmulated depreciation (8.152,209)
Total net assets $.6.390,831

B. General Fixed Assets

A sumamary of the changes in the general fixed assets account group during the fiscal year

follows:
Balance at Balance at
12/31/98 = Ingreases. . Decreases  __12/31/99

Land $ 510,544 § --- hY --- $ 510,544
Land mprovements 145,697 --- -—— 145,697
Buildings 2,007,283 2,075,722 --- 4,083,005
Building improvements 873,497 - -—— 973,497
Furniture, fixtures : 7

and equipment 2,231,586 493,476 (25,350) 2,699,712
Vehicles 3,052,427 . 253,692 (4,625) 3,301,494
Construction - : _

In progress 339,964 1.735.758 (2.075.722) 0
Total $9,260,008 34,558,648 §§_ZELO§!§273 511,713,949
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NOTE 12 -

A.

MORROW COUNTY, OHIO

NOTES TO THE GENERAL PURPOSE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1999

CAPITALIZED LEASES - LESSEE DISCLOSURE

During 1999, the County entered into 2 capital lease for the acquisition of an asphalt
roller. This lease meets the criteria of a capital lease as defined by FASB Staternent No.
13, “Accounting for Leases”, which definesa capltal lease as one which transfers benefits

and risks of ownership to the lessee.

This equipment has been capitalized in the general fixed assets account group in the
amount of $73,524. This amount represents the present value of the minimum lease
payments at the time of acquisition. A corresponding liability was recorded in the
general long-term obligations account group There were no pnnc1pa1 payments in fiscal
year 1999. : ,

The following 1s a schedule of the future Jong-term minimum lease payments required
under the capital leases and the present value of the minimum lease payments as of
December 31, 1999:

Fiscal Year Ending December 31, _Amount
2000 o 517,464
2001 17,464
2002 17,464
2003 - T 17,464
2004 : 17.463
Total - 87,319
Less: amount representing interest (13,795
Present value of nef minimum lease payments $73,524

During 1999, the Hospital entered into capital leases for a computer hardware and
software system. The obligations under these capital leases have been recorded at the
present value of future minimum lease payments, discounied at appropriate interest rates.
The capitalized costs of $684,780 less accumulated depreciation of $69,041 are included
in property and equiprnent, i the accompanying combined financial staternents. The
hability for the obligation under capital lease at December 31, 1999 was $557,715.



MORROW COUNTY, OHIO

NOTES TO THE GENERAL PURPOSE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMRBER 31, 1999

NOTE 13 - OPERATING LEASES - LESSEE DISCLOSURE

Whetstone Industries has entered into an operating lease agreement for store space located
in Mt. Gilead, Ohio for its basket weaving activities. The terms of the lease require the
Industries to make monthly payments of $500 until July 31, 2001, the termination date of the
lease. The Industries has the option to renew the lease for an additional two years. The
Industries also leases facilities located in Edison, Ohio for its recycling activities. The terms
of the 1ease require the Industries to make monthly payments of $750 until October 31, 2000,
the termination date of the lease. Lease expense for 1999 amounted to $15,000. Future
minimum lease payments are as follows:

2000 ) $13,500
2001 3.500
Total $17.000

NOTE 14 - COMPENSATED ABSENCES LIABILITY

Vacation and sick leave accumulated by governmental fund type employees has been
recorded in the general long-term obligations account group. Vacation and sick leave camed
by proprietary funds type employees is expensed when earned.

County employees earn vacation at varying rates ranging from two to five weeks per year.
Vacation is io be taken within one year of the employee’s anniversary date. In certain cases,
vacation can accumulate up to three times the annual vacation rate for an employee, All
accumulated, unused vacation time is paid upon separation from the County. Sick leave is
accumulated at the rate of .0575/bour for every hour worked. Upon retirement, employess
with ten years of service are entitled to 25 percent of their accumulated sick leave up to a
maximum of 30 days. At December 31, 1999 vesied benefits for vacation leave for
governmental fund type employees totaled $293,183 and vested benefits for sick leave
totaled $39,563. In accordance with GASB Statement No. 16, an additional Liability of
$61,021 was accrued to record termination (severance) payments expected to become eligible
to retire in the future for the governmental fund type emplovees.

(98]
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MORROW COUNTY, OHIO

NOTES TO THE GENERAL PURPOSE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1999

NOTE 15 - LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS

A. General Long-Term Obligations

The changes in the County's long-term obligations during 1999 consisted of the

following:
Restated
Matyrity Interest Balance at Balance at

General Obligation Bonds: ) o

Jail Bond Retirement 2013 4.875% $1,248,000 & --- $(178,000) $1,070,000

MRDD Building Bonds 2011 6-2 -7.95% 375.000 - (20.000) 355,000
Total General Obligation Bonds $1.623,000 - - 2(198,000y $1.425.000
Loans Payable: :

Engineers Vehicles #2 -- 5.65% $ 22445 § --- $ (22,445 § 0

Engineers Vehicles #3 2001 6.00% 79,335 S - (26,444) 52,891

Engineers Vehicles #4 2002 5.75% 85,800 - (21,450) 64,350

Engineers Vehicles #5 2003 5.513% 168,405 --- {33,681) 134,724

Engineers Vehicles #6 2003 5.44% 93,903 - {18,781) 75,122

Engineers Vehicles #7 2004 4.90% Q _21L.078 —-- - 211078
Tota] Loans Payable 3 440,888 $211.078  B(122801) § 538,165
QOWDA Loans Payable 2013 7.50% 111 3o S (5719 § 106204
Other Long-Term Obligations: , _

Compensated Absences Payable $ 352,042 £43,725 3 --- 3 395,767

Capital Lease Payable 0 73,524 S 73,524

Due to Other Governments 234001 - (234.961) 0
Total Other Long-Term Obligations . 5587003 §li7249 323496 § 469291
Total Geperal Long-Term Obligations 3771814  §328,327 $(561.48]) $£2.538.660

Generagl Obligation Bonds: The general obligation bonds are supported by the full faith
and credit of the County. The bonds were issued to provide resources for building

renovations and improvements including energy conservation measures. These bonds
are being retired through rental charges and other County operating sources.



MORROW COUNTY, OHIO

NOTES TO THE GENERAL PURPOSE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1999

"NOTE 15 - LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS - (Continued)

Loans Pgvable: Loans payable consist of money owed to the Ohio Water Development
Authority for construction a sanitary sewer from the City of Galion to the Ketterman
Subdivision and bank loans for vehicles used by the County’s Engineer’s Office. These
loans are retired through the debt service with transfers from the motor vehicle gas tax
special revenue find. OWDA Ioans will be paid from the Ketterman debt service fund.
The loans for the engineers vehicles will be paid from the motor vehicle bond retirement
debt service fund.

Compensated Absences: Sick leave and vacation benefits are presented net of actual
increases and decreases because of the practicality of determining these values. The
benefits will be paid from the fund from which the person is paid.

Euture Debt Service Reguirements: The foliowing is a summary of the County's future

annual debt service principal and interest requirements for general long-term obligations:

M&LM

Year Epded FPrincipal Interest Principal ~ Injerest _Tofal
2000 $ 84,000 $ 72,153  § 156,153 $142,573 $24,852 $167,425
2001 $7,000 68,083 155,083 142,573 16,985 159,558
2002 96,000 63,483 159,483 116,127 10,408 126,535
2003 99,000 X8.639 157,639 94,677 4,516 99,193
2004 102,000 53,621 135,621 42,215 . 517 42,732

2005 - 2009 609,000 178,076 = 787,076 —m S e

2010 - 2013 348,000 22715 370,715 —— vv= _ozae
Total $1.425.000 $516770  $L941.770 $538,165 §57,278 505443

— . OWDAYoan

Xear Epded . Pringipal Jnterest  _Total
2000 $ 6,148 $ 7965 B 14,113
2001 6,609 7,504 . 14,113
2002 7,104 7,009 14,113
2003 7,637 6476 14,113
2004 2210 5,903 14,113 , ) o

2005 - 2009 51,263 19,302 70,565 : - -

2010 - 2013 18233 1935 _21.168 '

Total $106.204 $56,094 $162,298



MORROW COUNTY, OHIO

NOTES TO THE GENERAL PURPOSE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1999

NOTE.15 - LONG TERM OBLIGATIONS - (Continued)

B. The Ohio Revised Code provides that the net general obligation debt of the County,
exclusive of certain exempt debt, issned without a vote of the electors shall never
exceed one percent of the total assessed valuation of the County.

The Code further provides that the total voted and unvoted net debt of the County, less
the same exempt debt, shall never exceed a sum equal to three percent of the first
$100,000,000 of the assessed valuation, plus one and one-half percent of such valuation
in excess of $100,000,000 and net in excess of $300,000,000, plus two and one-half
percent of such valuation in excess of $300,000,000. Based on this calculation, the
County’s legal debt margin was $5,443,710 as of December 31, 1999.

C. Enterprise Fund Obligations

The County had the following capital lease obligations, revenue notes and installment
loans payable outstanding at year end related to enterprise fund operations:

Interest Balance at Balance at
Capital Lease Obligations § 14,472 $557,715 8§ (14472) § 537,715
Deed Restriction on Land . 12,000 - - ’ 12,000
Hospital Improvement Revenue Notes 367 465,499 --- (465,499) 0
Hospital Facilities Revenue Notes 5.90 --- 432,000 --- 432,000
Installment Loans Payable 4.45-500 53,104 - (83108 @
Total Enterprise Fund Obligations $545 0735 2980715  B(533.075) $1,001.713
Capital Leases Pavable: Capital lease obligation represents the leases entered into

dnring fiscal year 1999 for a computer and hardware sysiem for the Hospital. The lease
for Laboratory Equipment for the hospital, which expired in fiscal year 1999, was repaid
from Hospital operating revenue.

Deed Restriction on Land: The Hospital has a deed restriction of $12,000 for 2 donation
of land. Payment is based on fulfiliment of physician contract and disposal of land by
the Hospital Foundation. Land is resiricted for use of medical buildings and is
unsecured. — '



MORROW COUNTY, OHIO

NOTES TO THE GENERAL PURPOSE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1999

NOTE 15 - LONG TERM OBLIGATIONS - (Continued) -

Hospital Improvement Revenue Note: The Hospital Improvement Revenue Notes were

issued for a five year period and matured on December 1, 1999. The notes were retired
from Hospital operating revenue.

Hospital Facilities Refunding Revenue Note; The Hospital Facilities Refunding Revenue

Notes were issued for a five year period and will mature December 1, 2005. The notes
will be retired from Hospital operating revenue.

[nstallment Loagns Payable: The instaliment loans were used to acquire equipment for
the Hospital. The loans were secured by the related eguipment. The loans were paid off

during fiscal year 1999 with Hospital operating revenues.

The following is 2 summary of the future debt requirements of the hospital:

ding er Amount
2000 $ 76,540
2001 81,180
2002 , . 86,101
2003 7 91,321
2004 ) 96,858
Thereafier 12,000
Total 5444 000

During the year, the Hospital entered into a line of credit agreement with First-Knox
Bank with a maximum line of $433,000 at an interest rate of prime, or 8.50% at
December 31, 1999 ($250,000 outstanding). "The line of credit matures on August 16,
2000. The agreement requires that the principal plus all accrued interest be paid on the
maturity date.
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MORROW COUNTY, OHIO

NOTES TO THE GENERAL PURPOSE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1995

NOTE 15 - LONG TERM OBLIGATIONS - (Continued)

E. The Industries had the following notes payable to Firsi-Knox National Bank outstanding
at December 31, 1999: . : :

Balance at Interest Maturity Monthly
_12/31/99 _Rafes - _Date _Pavment
$3,465 8.75% 8/20/01 $190
915 8.75% 6/30/00 . 157
3,300 Prime’ - 4/26/02 127
$7.680
The following is a summary of the Industries future debt requirements:
Fiscal Year Ending December 31, Amount
2000 $4,264
2001 2,886
2002 —230
Total 22,080

NOTE 16 - BOND ANTICIPATION NOTE PAYABLE

The County had the following bond anticipation note ouistanding at December 31, 1999 in
the capital projects finds. Bond anticipation notes are reported as a Hability in the fund that
received the proceeds. .

Balance . Balance
Issue Maturity  Qutstanding Outstanding
Date Date 12/31/98 .Additions  Reductions _12/31/99

Social Services

Building - 4.150% 0/27/9% 9/27/00  §3.600000 33740000 $(3,600,000) $3,740.000
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MORROW COUNTY, OHIO

NOTES TO THE GENERAL PURPOSE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1999

NOTE 17 - NET PATIENT SERVICE REVENUE AND CHARITY CARE -

The Hospital provides services to certain patients covered by various third party payor
arrangements that provide for payments to the Hospital at amounts different than its
established rates. Gross patient service revenues and the allowances to reconcile to net
patient services revenue for the year ended December 31, 1999 are as follows:

— 1999

Gross patient service revenue $17,639,452
Less contractual allowances: N

Medicare 3,554,004

Medicaid and other - 1,385,532

Total confractual aliowances 4939 536

Net patient service revenue $12,999916

The Hospital maintains records to identify and monitor the level of charity care it provides.
These records include the amount of charges foregone for services and supplies furnished
under the charity care policy. Charify care, based on estimated rates, totaied approximately
$104,795 and $121,896 during years ended December 31, 1999 and 1998, respectively.

NOTE 18 - MEDICARE AND MEDICAID THIRD PARTY SETTLEMENTS

Reimbursement for Medicare and Medicaid patients 1s subject to audit and final seftlement
by the respective intermedianes. At December 31, 1999, final ssttlements have been reached
with Medicare through 1996 and with Medicaid through 1995. The hability amount of
$122,376 reported on the combined balance sheet represents the estimated settlements
outstanding at December 31, 1999, which Hospital management believes will approximate
final settlements afier audit by the respective agencies.

NOTE 19 - SEGMENT INFORMATION FOR ENTERPRISE FUNDS

The County maintains two enterprise fimds, the Kettenman Sewer fund and Morrow County
Hospital fund which are intended to be self-supporiing through user fees charged for
services. In addition, the County reports the activity of Whetstone Industries as 2 discretely
presenied component unit. Financial imformation for the year ended December 31, 1999, is
as follows:
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MORROW COUNTY, OHIO

NOTES TO THE GENERAL PURPOSE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1999

NOTE 19 - SEGMENT INFORMATION FOR ENTERPRISE FUNDS - (Continued)

Morrow Total Total
Ketterman County Primary Component  Reporting
—=Sewer . _Hospital  Qovermment Unit — Entity
Operating revenue ’ 535,381 $13,978,465 §$14,013,876 51,061,828 $15,075,704
Operating expenses before -
depreciation . 34,126 13,855,807 = 13,889,933 1,029,340 14,919,273
Depreciation expense 5,127 734,540 739,667 1,384 741,051
Operating income (Toss) (3,872) (611,852} {615,724) 31,104 (584,620)
Net income (loss) (1,130 {230,260) (231,391) 31,104 (200,287)
Property, plant and
equipment (net of
accumniated depreciation) 246,116 6,150,715 6,396,831 4,628 6,401,459
Net working capital 88,515 3,426,931 3,515,446 33,791 3,549,237
Total assets 334,539 11,841486 12,176,117 93,255 12,269,372
Total liabilities .- 2,821,555 2,821,555 54,836 2,876,391
Retained earnings 120,543 0,019,931 9,140,474 38,419 9,178,893
Contributed capital 214,088 --- 214,088 - - 214,088
Total equity 334,631 9,019,931 9,354,562 38,419  9,392.931

NOTE 20 - RISK MANAGEMENT
A. Property and Liability Insurance

The County is exposed to vanous 1isks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, and
destruction of assets; errors and omissions; injuries to employees; and patural disasters.

During 1999, the County contracted with the County Risk Sharing Authority, Inc.
(CORSA) for liability, property, automotive, and ciime msurance. The CORSA program
has a $2,500 deductible. Coverage provided by CORSA are as follows:



MORROW COUNTY, OHIO

NOTES TO THE GENERAL PURPOSE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1999

NOTE 26 - RISK MANAGEMENT - (Contipued}

General Liability (per occurrence)
Law Enforcement Liability (per occurrence)
Automobile Liability and Physical Damage
Liability (per occurrence)
Medical Payments
Per Person
Per Occurrence
Uninsured Motorist (per person)
Physical Damage

Flood and Earthquake (pool limit)
Other Property Insurance:
Extra Expense
EDP Media
Contractors’ Equipment
Valuable Papers and Records
Inland Marine
Automatic Acquisition
Motor Truck Cargo

Crime Insurance: -
Faithful Performance
Money and Securities (m51de and outmde)
Depositor’s Forgery - = -~

Money Orders and Counterfeit Paper Currency

Boiler and Machinery ‘
Public Officials (per occurrence)
Umbrella (per occurrence)

There has been no significant reduction 1In msurance coverage from 1996, and settied
claims have not exceeded this coverage in the past three years. The County pays all

elected officials’ bonds by statute.
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_Amonnt
$3,000,000
3,000,000

3,000,000
5,000
50,000
250,000

Actual Cost
100,000,000

1,000,000
Replacement Cost™

Actua] Cash Value

1,000,000

Actual Cash Value
© 3,000,000
100,000

1,000,000
1,600,000
1,000,000
1,000,000
100,000,000
1,000,000
5,000,000



MORROW COUNTY, OHIO

NOTES TO THE GENERAL PURPOSE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1999

NOTE 20 - RISK MANAGEMENT - (Continued) ~
B. Maipractice and General Patient Liability Insurance

The Hospital is at all time subject to pending and threatened legal actions which arise in
the normal course of its activities. The Hospital purchases, through a commercial carrier,
professional liability insurance on an occurrence basis without co-insurance. This
insurance 1s subject to deductibles and covers claims up to specified policy limits per
medical incident and in the aggregate.

C. Hospital Seli-Imsurance Program

Effective June 1, 1990, the Hospital began participating in a self-funded health and dental
insurance plan. In addition, the Hospital purchases stop-loss insurance that provides
coverage of claims In excess of certain amounts on mdividual claims. The self-funded
plan is administered by a third party administrator which determines the current funding
requirement of participants under the terms of the plan and the liability for claims and
assessments that would be payable at any given point in time. In connection therewith,
the Hospital charged to operations a provision of $305,449 for 1999 and §391,324 for
1998 which represents the sum of actual claims paid and estimates for incurred but
unreported claims, resulting from incidents that occurred during the year. As of
December 31, 1999 and 1998, the Hospital had estimated its outstanding loss claims at
$44,500 for each year, which is reported as a current liability at year end. Subsequent
adjustment of insurance plan Liabilities based on claims experience is treated as an
adjustment to expense.

NOTE 21 - DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLANS
A. Public Employees Retirement System

All Morrow County full-time smployees, other than teachers, participate in the Public
Employees Retirement System of Ohio (PERS), a cost sharing multiple-emplover public
employee retirement system creaied by the State of Obio. PERS provides basic
retirement and disability benefits, annual cost of living adjustments, and death benefits
to plan members and beneficiaries. Authority to establish and amend benefits is provided
by state statute per Chapter 145 of the Ohio Revised Code. PERS issues a stand-alone
financial report which may be obtained by writing to the Public Employees Retirement
System, 277 East Town Street, Columbus, Ohio 43215-4642. ’
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MORROW COUNTY, OHIO

NOTES TO THE GENERAL PURPOSE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1599

NOTE 21 - DEFINED BENEFTT PENSION PLANS - (Continued)

The Ohio Revised Code provides statutory anthority for employee and employer
contributions. The employee contribution rate for 1999 was 8.5 percent for employees
other than law enforcement. Law enforcement employees contribute 9.0 percent of
covered salary. The employer contribution rate was 13.55 percent of covered payroll;
9.35 percent was the portion used to fund pension obligations for 1999. The law
enforcement employer rate was 16.7 percent of covered payroll and 12.5 percent was the
portion used to fund pension obligations for 1999. The County’s contributions for
pension obligations to PERS for the years ended December 31, 1999, 1998, and 1997
were $736,032, $676,025, and $544,278 respectively; 68.2 percent has been contributed
for 1999 and 100 percent for 1998 and 1997. $233,408, representing the unpaid portion
for 1999 is recorded as a liabihity within the respective funds. The Hospital’s
contributions to PERS for the vears ended December 31, 1999, 1998, and 1997 were
$605,594, $602,700, and $534,000 respectively, which were equal to the required
contributions for each year. The unpaid contribution for 1999 is recorded as a Lability
within the respective funds.

B. State Teachers Retirement System

Certified teachers employed by the school for the Mental Retarded/Developmentally
Disabled participate in the State Teachers Retirement System of Ohio (STRS), a cost-
sharing multiple employer public employee retirement system administered by the State
Teachers Retirement Board. STRS provides basic retirement benefits, disability,
survivor, and health care benefits based on eligible service credit to members and
beneficiaries. Benefits are established by Chapter 3307 of the Ohio Revised Code.

STRS issues a publicly available financial report that includes financial statements and
required supplementary information for STRS. That report may be obtained by writing
to the State Teachers Retirement System, 275 East Broad Street, Columbus, Ohio 43215-
3771 - - '
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NOTES TO THE GENERAL PURPOSE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1999

NOTE 21 - DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLANS - (Continued)

Plan members are required to confribute 9.3 percent of their annual covered salary and
the County is required to contribuie 14 percent; 10.5 percent was the portion used to fund
pension obligations. Contribution rates are established by STRS, upon recommendation
of ifs consulting actuary, not to exceed statutory maximum rates of 10 percent for
members and 14 percent for employers. The County’s contributions for pemsion
obligations to STRS for the years ended December 31, 1999, 1998, and 1997 were
$34,156, 535,388 and $26,121, respectively, 91.9 percent has been confributed for 1999
and 100 percent for the years 1998 and 1997. $2,761, representing the unpaid
contributions for 1999, 1s recorded as a iability within the respective funds.

NOTE 22 - POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS

A. Public Employees Retirement System

PERS provides post retirement hezalth care coverage to age and service retirants with 10
or more years of qualifying Ohio service credit and to primary survivor recipients of such
retirants. Health care coverage for disability recipients is available. The health care
coverage provided by the retirement system is considered an Other Postemployment
Beneﬁt (OPEB) as descrfbed m GASB Statement No. 12, mm&mggim&mﬁm

Emplgxem” A pOI'thI'l of each employers conm“butlon to PERS is set aside for the
funding of post retirement health care. The Ohio Revised Code provides statutory
authority for employer coniributions. The 1999 employer coniribution rate for local
employers was 13.55% of covered payroll; 4.2% was the portion that was used to fimd
health care. The law enforcement employer rate for 1999 was 16.7% of covered payroll;
4.2% was the portion used to fund health care.

The Ohio Revised Code provides the statutory authority requiring public employers to
fund postretirement health care throngh their contributions to PERS. The County’s
coniribution actuaily made to fund postemployment benefits was $320,718.

QOPEB are financed through employer contributions and investment earnings thercon.
The coniributions allocated to retiree health care, along with investment income on
allocated assets and periodic adjustments in health care provisions are expected to be
sufficient to sustain the program indefinitely.
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1999

NOTE 22 - POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS - (Continued)

-

Expenditures for OPEB during 1999 were $523.599 million. As of Deceinber 31, 1999,
the unaudited estimated net assets available for future OPEB payments were $9.870
billion. The number of benefit recipients eligible for OPEB at December 31, 1999 was

118,062. : .-

During 1997, the Retirement Board adopted a new calculation method for determining
employer contributions applied to OPEB. Under the new method, effective January 1,
1998, employer contributions, equal to 4.2% of member covered payroll, are used to fund
health care expenses. Under the prior method, accrued liabilities and normal cost rates
were determined for retiree health care coverage.

Additional information on the PERS, including historical trend information showing the
progress in accumulating sufficient assefs to pay benefits when due is available in the
PERS December 31, 1999, Comprehensive Annual Financial Report.

B. State Teachers Retirement System

Comprehensive health care benefits are provided to retired teachers and their dependents
through the STRS. Benefits include hospitalization:, physicians' fees, prescription drugs
and reimbursement of monthly Medicare premiums. Benefit provisions and the
obligations to contribute are established by STRS based on authority granted by Staie
statute,

All benefit recipients are required to pay a portion of the health care cost in the form of
a monthly preminm. Benefits are funded on a pay-as-you-go basis through an allocation
of employer contributions to the System equal to 3.5% of covered payroll. For the
County this amount equaied $8,539 during 1999. As of June 30, 1999, the balance in the
Health Care Reserve Fund was $2.783 billion and eligible benefit recipients staiewide
totaled 95,796 for STRS as 2 whole. Net health care costs paid by STRS statewide were
$2496.929 million.



MORROW COUNTY, OHIO

NOTES TO THE GENERAL PURPOSE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1999

NOTE 23 - BUDGETARY BASIS OF ACCOUNTING

The County's budgetary process is based upon accounting for transactions on the cagh basis.
The differences between the cash basis (budget basis) and the modified accrual basis (GAAP
basis) are that revenues are recorded when actually received (budget) as opposed to when
susceptible to accrual (GAAP) and the expenditures are recorded when paid (budget) as
opposed to when incurred (GAAP). Additionally, the County reflects outstanding
encumbrances as expenditures on the budgetary basis of accounting. Adjustments necessary
to convert the results of operations at the end of the year on the budget basis to the GAAP
basis are as follows: T =

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES AND OTHER FINANCING
SOURCES OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES
AND OTHER FINANCING USES

Govemmental Fund Types
Special Debt Capital

Budget basis ' $(526,587)  $(84,421) $(174,624) $ (208,955)
Net adjustment for -

revenue accruals 608,378 221,751 - (574,992)
Net adjustment for '

expenditure accruals 430,374 (22,419) 85,920 3,510,640
Net adjustment for other

financing sources

(uses) accruals (461,006) 53,903 19,621  (3,740,000)
Encumbrances ' '

(budget basis) 503,295 941,519 46,629 9,722

GAAP basis

§554454 $1.110.333  $(22.458 $(1.003.589)
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NOTES TO THE GENERAIL PURPOSE FINANCIAL STATEI\/[ENTS 7
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1999 '

NOTE 24 - CONTINGENCIES

A.

Grants

The County receives significant financial assistance from numerous federal and state
agencies in the form of grants. The disbursement of funds received under these programs
generally requires compliance with terms and conditions specified in the grant
agreements and is subject to audit by the grantor agencies. Any disallowed claims
resulting from such audits could become a liability of the general fund or other applicable
funds. However, in the opinion of management, any such disallowed claims will not
have a material effect on any of the financial staiements of the individual fund types
included herein or on the overall financial position of the County at December 31, 1999.

Morrow County Hospital

At December 31, 1999, management is aware of certain asscrted and unasserted
malpractice and general patient liability claims and assessments against the Hospital.
Future Hability of the Hospital related fo these claims and assessments is unknown.
Accordingly, no amounts have been accrued for malpractice and general patient liability
claims.

There may be unknown incidents arising from services provided to patients. However,
because the annual insurance policy only covers claims that have been asserted and
incidents reported to the insurance carrier, these unknown incidents are not yet covered
by insurance. Management has no basis to estimate the ultimate cost, if any, of the
settlement of such potential claims and, accordingly, has not accrued for them. In
addition, management intends to maintain the current occurrence basis insurance
coverage to cover any unknown meidents that may be asserted.

Litigation

At December 31, 1999, there were several claims and lawsuits pending against the
County. In the opinion of the County Prosecutor, no material liability is anticipated.
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NOTE 25 - RELATED PARTY TRANSACTION

Whetstone Industries, Inc., a discretely presented component unit of ghe County, received
contributions from the County for certairi personnel salaries. The contributions are reflected
as non-operating revenues in the GPFS. For the fiscal year ended December 31, 1999, the

coptributions were $642,361.

NOTE 26 - FEDERAYL TRANSACTIONS

The Morrow County Department of Human Services (Welfare Department} distributes
federal food stamps to entitled recipients within the County. The receipt and issuance of
these stamps have the characteristics of federal grants. However, the Welfare Department
merely acts in an intermediary capacity. Therefore, the inventory value of the stamps is not
reflected in the accompanying financial statements as the only economic interest related to
the stamps rest with the ultimate recipient. '
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Report On Compliance And On Internal Control Over Financial
Reporting Based Op An Audit Of Financial Statements Performed
In Accordance With Government Auditing Standards

Board of County Cormmissioners
Morrow County, Ohio

We have audited the financial statements of Morrow County, Ohio as of and for the year ended December 31,
1999, and have issued our repori thereon dated June 26, 2000. We conducted our audit in accordance with
generally accepted auditing standards and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in
Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Compitroller General of the United States.

Compliance

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether Morrow County, Ohio’s financial statements are free
of material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations,
contracts and grants, noncompliance with which could have 2 direct and material effect on the determination
of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not
an objective of our audit and, accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests
disclosed no instances of noncompliance that are required to be reporied under Govermment Auditing
Standards. However, we noted a certain immaterial instance of noncompliance that we have reported fo the
management of Morrow County, Ohio in a separate letter dated June 26, 2000.

Internal Controt OQver Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit, we considered Morrow County, Ohio’s internal control over financial
reporting in order to determine our audifing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the
financial statements and not fo provide assurance on the internal control over financial reporting. Our
consideration of the internal control over financial reporting would not necessarily disclose all matters in the
internal conirol over financial reporting that might be material weaknesses. A material weakness is a
condition in which the design or operation of one or more of the internal control components does not reduce
to a relatively low level the risk that misstatements in amounts that would be material in relation to the
financial statements being audited may occur and not be detected within a timely period by employees in the
normal course of performing their assigned functions. We noted no matters involving the internal control
over financial reporting and its operation that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, we noted
other matters involving the internal control over financial reporting that do not require inclusion in this report,
that we have reported to management of Morrow County, Ohio in a separate letter dated June 26, 2000.

This report is intended for the information and use of the Board of County Commissioners, management, the
Auditor of State, federal awarding agencies, and pass-through entities, and is not intended to be and should
not be used by anyone other than these specified parties.

Covime: B Brmiti Hee.
Cleveland, Ghio
June 26, 2000

T Chagrin Bowlevard, Cleveland, OH 44122-5683 7 37 West Broad Street, Columbus, OH 43215-4132
Telephone: 216-831-7171 48 o ) Telephone: 614-241-2200
Fax: 216-831-3020 Fax: 614-241-2202
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Report On Compliance With Requirements Applicable To Each
Major Program And Internal Control Over Compliance And
On The Schedule Of Expenditures Of Federal Awards In
Accordance With OMB Circular A-133

Board of County Commissioners
Morrow County, Ohio

Compliance

We have audited the compliance of Momrow County, Ohio with the types of compliance requirements
described in the U.S. Office of Management and Budget (OMB) Circular A-133 Compliance Supplement that
are applicable to its major federal programs for the year ended December 31, 1999, Morrow County, Ohio’s
major federal programs are identified in the sumumary of auditor’s resulis section of the accompanying
schedule of findings. Compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts and grants applicable
to its major federal programs is the responsibility of Morrow County, Ohio’s management. Our responsibility
is to express an opinion on Morrow County, Ohio’s compliance based on our audit.

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards; the
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States; and OMB Circular A-133, Audiis of States, Local Governments,
and Nown-Profit Organizations. Those standards and OMB Circular A-133 require that we plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance ocewrred with the types of compliance
requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal program. An
audit includes examining, on 2 test basis, evidence about Morrow County, Ohio’s compliance with those
requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. We
believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion. Our andit does not provide a legal
determination of Motrow County, Ohio’s compliance with those requirements.

In our opinion, Morrow County, Ohio complied, in all material respects, with the requirements referred to
above that are applicable to its major federal programs for the year ended December 31, 1999.

Internal Conirol Qver Compliange

The management of Morrow County, Ohio is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal
control over compliance with requirements of laws, regulations, contracts and grants applicable to federal
programs. In planning and performing our audit, we considered Morrow County, Ohio’s internal control over
compliance with requirements that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal program in order
to determine our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion on compliance and to test and
report on internal control over compliance in accordance with OMB Circular A-133,
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Our consideration of the internal control over comphance would not necessarily disclose all matiers in the
internal control that might be material weakmesses. A material weakness is a condition in which the design or
operation of one or more of the internal control components does not reduce to a relatively low level the risk
that noncompliance with applicable requirements of laws, regulations, contracts and grants that would be
material in relation to a major federal program being audited may occur and not be detected within a timely
period by employees in the normal course of performing their assigned functions. We noted no matters
involving the intemmal control over compliance and its operation that we consider to be material wealkmesses.

Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards

We have audited the general-purpose financial statements of Morrow County, Ohio as of and for the year
ended December 31, 1999, and have issued our report thereon dated June 26, 2000. Our audit was performed
for the purpose of forming an opinion on the general-purpose financial statements taken as a whole. The
accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards is presented for purposes of additional analysis as
required by OMB Circular A-133 and is not a required part of the general-purpose financial statements. Such
information has been subjected to the auditing procedures appled in the audit of the general-purpose financial
siatements and, in our opinion, is fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the general-purpose
financial statements taken as a whole.

This report is intended for the information and use of the Board of County Commissioners, management, the
Auditor of State, federal awarding agencies, and pass-through entities, and is not intended to be and should
not be used by anyone other than these specified parties.

Cleveland, Ohio
June 26, 2000
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MORROW COUNTY, OHIO

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1999

Federal
Federal Grantor/Pass-Through CFDA
Grantor/Program or Cluster Titl _ Number
U.S. Department of Agriculture:
Pass-Through Ohio Department of Education . R
National School Lunch 10.555
U.S. Department of Education:
Pass-Through Ohio Department of Education
Preschool Grant 84,173
Handicapped Preschool Grant 84.027
Title VI 84.323
Total U.S. Department of Education
U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development:
Pass-Through Ohio Department of Development
Community Development Block Grant 14.228
Community Development Block Grant 14.228
Community Development Block Grant 14.228

Total U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development

Federal Emergency Management Agency:
Pass-Through Ohic Emergency Management Agency

Emergency Management - State and Local Assistance ~ 83.534

U.S. Department of Transportation:
Pass-Through Department of Public Safety
Safe Communities 20.600

U.S. Department of Justice:
Pass-Through Ohio Attorney General’s Office

Byrne Formula Grant (LEBG) 16.579
DARE Grant 16.579
Public Safety Partnership and Community '

Policing Grants (COPS) 16.710

Total U.S. Departrnent of Justice

U.S. Department of Health and Human Services:
Pass-Through Ohio Department of Human Services

Social Services Block Grant 93.667
Child Care Development Fund 93.575
Family Violence 93.671
Title [V-B 93.645

Total U.S. Department of Health and Human Services

Total Expenditures of Federal Awards

Pass-Through
Entity Identifying
Nurmber

066167

066167-PG-S1-989P
066167-6B-65F-699P
066167-C2-WS-1-99

B-C-98-054-1
B-F-98-054-1
B-F-97-054-1

98-PPACA
0871.0

98-LF-LUB-3053
99-59-01

26-UM-WK-0919

G-99-010HSOSR

G-99-010HCCDF
G-99-010HFVPS
G-99-010H1400

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this schedule
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3,835

9,126
14,948
851

14,310
132,887

6.838

154,041

5,000
15,458

49,330

41,991
8,224
1,800

§ 304,700



MORROW COUNTY, OHIO

NOTES TO THE SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1999

NOTE 1 - BASIS OF PRESENTATION , _

The accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards includes the federal grant activity of Morrow
County, Ohio and is presented using the cash basis of accounting. The information in this schedule is
presented in accordance with the requirements of OMB Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments,
and Non-Profit Organizations. Therefore, some amounts presented in this schedule may differ from amounts
presented in, or used in the preparation of, the general-purpose financial statements.

NOTE 2 - LOANS QUTSTANDING

The County administers two loan programs with funds provided by the U.S. Department of Housing and
Urban Development, through the Ohio Department of Development under Community Development Block
Grant. As of December 31, 1999, the amount of the loans outstanding was $73,411 for the Economic
Development Revolving Loan Program and 345,038 for the Water and Sewer Revolving Loan Program.
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MORROW COUNTY, OHIO

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS 7 - o
OMB CIRCULAR A-133 SECTION .505

DECEMBER 31, 1999

1. SUMMARY OF AUDITOR’S RESULTS

(@(D(H Type of Financial Statement Opinion Unqualified

(DD Were there any material control weakness conditions | No
reported at the financial statement level (GAGARS)?

(d)(D)(ii) Were there any other reportable control weakness | No
conditions reported at the financial statement level
(GAGAS)?

(@(DH(iit) Was there any material reported noncompliance at the | No
financial statement level (GAGAS)?

{(AD(iv) Were there any material internal control weakness | No
conditions reported for major federal programs?

(AL} Gv) Were there any other reportable intermnal control weakness | No
conditions reported for major federal programs?

(dyD) (v) Type of Major Programs’ Compliance Opinion Unqualified

(DD(vi) Are there any reportable findings under Section .5017 No

Community Development Block
Grant

CFDA No. 14.228

Public Safety Partnership and
Community Policing Grants
(COPS)

CFDA No. 16.710

{(D({ID{(vii) Major Programs

Dollar Threshold: Type A/B Programs Type A:>$300,000
Type B:>All Others
(@M@x) | Low Risk Auditee? No

2. FINDINGS RELATED TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS REQUIRED
TO BE REPORTED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GAGAS

There were no findings noted relating to the financial statements that would be required to be reported in
accordance with generally accepted government auditing standards.
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MORROW COUNTY, OHIO

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS
OMB CIRCULAR A-133 SECTION .505

DECEMBER 31, 1999

3. FINDINGS FOR FEDERAL AWARDS

There were no findings for federal awards to report in 1999.
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MORROW COUNTY, OHIO

SCHEDULE OF PRIOR AUDIT FINDINGS
OMB CIRCULAR A-133 SECTION .315(b)

DECEMBER 31, 1999

There were no prior audit findings or questioned costs for federal awards reported in 1998.
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MORROW COUNTY, OHIO
48 EAST HIGH STREET
MT. GILEAD, OHIO 43338
(419) 946-8055

Response To Findings Associated With Audit Conducted
In Accordance With Government Auditing Standards
For The Year Ended December 31, 1999

Anticipated Responsibie
Finding Planned Corrective Completion Contact
Number Action Date Person
Not
applicable
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STATE OF OHIO - 88 East Broad Street

ped A P.O.Box 1140
FFICE OF THE AUDITOR Columbus, Ohic 43216-1140

JiM PETRO, AUDITOR OF STATE ' Telephone614-466-4514
- 800-282-0370

Facsimile 614-466-4490

MORROW COUNTY FINANCIAL CONDITION

MORROW COUNTY

CLERK’S CERTIFICATION

This is a true and correct copy of the report which is required to be filed in the
Office of the Auditor of State pursuant to Section 117.26, Revised Code, and
which is filed in Columbus, Ohio.

Date: JUL 2 5 200@ B
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